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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, MARCH 14, 2017, 9:09 A.M.

2 THE COURT:  -- Service Corporation in A-649857.

3 (Off-record colloquy Court/Court Recorder)

4 THE COURT:  All right.  We need everybody to put

5 their name on the record so -- who they're dealing with, from

6 the plaintiffs, first.

7 MR. BOYLAN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Thank you. 

8 Nicholas Boylan and Shawn Christopher.

9 THE COURT:  Okay.  And from the defendants?

10  MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Larry

11 Scarborough, Katie Brown, and Katie Webber for CRC, one of the

12 defendants in the case.

13 MR. CERAN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Allan Ceran

14 for the defendant, MTC Financial, Inc. doing business as

15 Trustee Corp.

16 THE COURT:  Ceran?

17 MR. CERAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  

19 MR. BECKOM:  Thomas Beckom on behalf of Quality Loan

20 Service Corporation.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  And we have someone on the -- 

22 THE CLERK:  Who's on the phone?

23 THE COURT:  -- phone as well?

24 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Your Honor, I believe that -- 

25 MR. YAN:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Jerett Yan for
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1 defendant, MTC Financial.

2 THE COURT:  Darren -- Darren, say your name again?

3 MR. YAN:  Jerett, J-e-r-e-t-t, the last name is Yan.

4 THE COURT:  Okay.  Good morning, sir.  

5 All right.  Okay.  Here -- I went back through

6 everything.  My Clerk and I have been going over this for

7 quite some time.  I wanted to make sure I understood kind of

8 what was going on before.  And I believe I do have a good

9 handle on what Judge -- Judge Scann was dealing with.

10 The problem is, is there was no order signed from

11 her February 2016 hearing.  And I had an opportunity to review

12 the -- the motions again.  I went back and I read Judge

13 Williams's decision with respect to his reading of 107, and

14 how 649 plays into that.

15 And by doing that, I -- my belief is that Judge

16 Scann somewhat was of the same understanding of what -- how

17 107 and 649 are working together under these circumstances.  

18 In looking at the actual hearing that was argued in

19 the hearing, Judge Scann's responses, is that I believe that

20 her ruling purports to allow the plaintiffs to conduct

21 additional discovery to determine what and if they could find

22 any evidence -- I think it was more like a fishing kind of an

23 expedition on your behalf -- to support a claim of fraud

24 beyond what is protected by 107.

25 I -- under these circumstances, it's my opinion here
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1 that the defendants are in a position that -- that even though

2 the argument is is that they -- that you're saying that they

3 needed to get licensed and all that, I believe that there's --

4 there's certain protections under the Deed of Trust and the

5 trustees are protected and can do certain things under 107,

6 that you may be believing is a -- is some type of fraudulent

7 act, because they weren't licensed.

8 But I don't believe that there's a requirement for

9 them to be licensed to do some of what they're -- what was

10 claiming.  

11 However, so it's clear to the Discovery

12 Commissioner, I think -- I think Commissioner Bulla came and

13 kind of ran with this, not really knowing, because of what --

14 what they need -- what she needed to so.  And, I mean, I'm not

15 trying to cast any dispersions on her or what was happening

16 here, but it really wasn't clear.

17 And it sounds to me that both parties kind of played

18 a -- played into that, meaning, well, we don't have an order

19 with this, we're not really clear what we have to do, so we --

20 we have unfettered discovery.  No, you have to follow certain

21 discovery -- and we're not going to give you certain things.

22 So, I want to right now I want to make it clear from

23 this point on is that there isn't a finding -- there isn't a

24 finding that there's any class yet.  

25 What plaintiffs can do -- and I don't know if -- I
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1 mean, your response may be that this is what we've been doing,

2 but I'm giving you the opportunity to look and see if there's

3 anything that you're claim, and through your allegations, that

4 you believe that defendants are doing, and you can find

5 through discovery, that's outside a protection as a trustee

6 under 107.

7 And what I mean, if you -- is reading the opinion

8 that -- well, the decision that Judge Williams had issued with

9 respect to how 107 is -- and I use the words loosely,

10 "protections", because they're basically what -- and if

11 there's anything that they are allowed to do under the Deed of

12 Trust.  

13 And so contacting individuals, soliciting monies to

14 pay -- pay for the -- the costs associated with the Deed of

15 Trust, even foreclosures are within the realm of what the Deed

16 of Trust would allow them to do.

17 And so I don't believe that if that's the actions

18 that they're doing solely, is actionable under the fraudulent

19 acts of failure to be licensed and doing what you're claiming

20 is debt collection.  Because if the term is synonymous with

21 each other, applying what they believe they have the right to

22 do under the Deed of Trust as trustees, as collecting what's

23 owed to them, and what you believe to be a debt collection,

24 then you have to show me how it's outside of 107, and then

25 protected -- I mean, with 649.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

AA004014



6

1 And I -- understanding that she had dismissed the

2 one count involving the elder abuse, you have the two count --

3 the two fraud counts there.  They need -- you need to show me. 

4 And I think that's what she's giving you the opportunity to

5 look for.  And, I mean, am I on the same page here guys, I

6 mean?

7 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  A couple -- a couple -- a couple

8 of comments -- 

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- if I can, Your Honor.

11 MR. BOYLAN:  I'd like to address it first, Your

12 Honor, if I may -- 

13 THE COURT:  Okay.  That's fine.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  -- as the plaintiff.  I appreciate it.

15 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

16 MR. BOYLAN:  We have spent considerable time

17 studying -- 

18 THE COURT:  I know.

19 MR. BOYLAN:  -- 649 and 107.  We have dissected it

20 greatly.  We've looked at the legislative history of each. 

21 We've laid it out in our papers.  649.020 is the key statute

22 that defines what a -- a claim collection agent is in Nevada. 

23 It's very broad and it includes pursuing payment of an

24 obligation, directly or indirectly.

25 Let me say that again; directly or indirectly -- 
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1 THE COURT:  Right.  I just looked at it.  I read it

2 the other day.

3 MR. BOYLAN:  -- and by any means, whether it's

4 primary or secondary objective.  And a claim is defined under

5 the statute as money or money equivalent.  

6 Now, money equivalent is not horses and pigs.

7 THE COURT:  What's that?

8 MR. BOYLAN:  Money equivalent is included within the

9 statute -- 

10 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

11 MR. BOYLAN:  -- for a claim collection.  So that's

12 security.

13 THE COURT:  Yeah, but the way you read that, and the

14 broad sense of that -- and I agree, it's a broad -- it's

15 broadly written -- is that under all circumstances of somebody

16 collecting or attempting to recover monies owed to them would

17 be considered a debt collector under those terms.

18 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, yes, but -- 

19 THE COURT:  But when you limit that and you

20 contractually agree to place you into certain -- we're just

21 using different terms here.

22 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, but look at Subsection (2). 

23 Right under that, this legislature spelled out who will be

24 excepted from the rule.  And foreclosure trustees are not

25 listed.  It's banks and attorneys.
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1 I mean, the funny thing about this case, with all

2 this complexity, of all this -- and all this paper is, all

3 you've got to do is read the statutes.  It's really pretty

4 plain.  There's no cross-reference there to NRS 107.  There's

5 no exception that says, if you happen to -- if someone sends

6 you a Deed of Trust you can do anything you want.

7 You can collect money, you can knock on their door,

8 you can evict them, you can take their property.  You can do

9 anything you want as long as someone sends you a Deed of

10 Trust.  The statute doesn't say that.

11 THE COURT:  Yeah, but as long as you're acting under

12 the confines of the Deed of Trust as a trustee -- 

13 MR. BOYLAN:  Can you practice law without -- 

14 THE COURT:  But what -- what you're saying though -- 

15 MR. BOYLAN:  -- a law license, can you -- can you do

16 things that -- 

17 THE COURT:  No, but there's actual protections, so

18 to speak, under the statute here under 107.  And so because --

19 the reason I say that is because if it's something -- because

20 it limits it to a trustee.  And so if -- do you not believe

21 that -- 

22 MR. BOYLAN:  There's nothing in 107 -- 

23 THE COURT:  -- you know, be an absurd -- what's

24 that?

25 MR. BOYLAN:  There's nothing in 107 that says if
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1 you're doing foreclosures you do not have to get your

2 collection agency license.  

3 THE COURT:  But there's nothing -- 

4 MR. BOYLAN:  Why wouldn't -- 

5 THE COURT:  -- in 107 that says that you have to. 

6 You're reading in -- 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  That's in 649.

8 THE COURT:  You're -- I know, that's what you're

9 saying.  But what you're doing is -- 

10 MR. BOYLAN:  So -- 

11 THE COURT:  -- that you're taking it out of the fact

12 that you're a trustee.  So in every situation where an

13 individual has -- becomes a trustee, you're claiming, in every

14 situation in the State of Nevada you have to have a license as

15 a collection agency -- 

16 MR. BOYLAN:  We -- we have -- 

17 THE COURT:  -- to exercise your rights under a -- as

18 a trustee holding a Deed of Trust.  So even private

19 individuals that have it themself, a private -- so I become a

20 trustee.  They make me a trustee, even though I'm not -- I am

21 not a bank, I'm not a non-profit corporation or whatever, but

22 I'm a trustee for a Deed of Trust that happens with my   

23 family -- 

24 MR. BOYLAN:  Right.

25 THE COURT:  -- I have to go get a license if I want
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1 to try to -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  No.

3 THE COURT:  -- collect money from -- 

4 MR. BOYLAN:  No, that's not what -- 

5 THE COURT:  -- an individual that owes money on

6 that.

7 MR. BOYLAN:  Absolutely not.  That's not what 649

8 says.  Because that's not your business.  It has to be your

9 business.  These people, collectively, these defendants

10 collected about $400 million in fees and costs.  This is their

11 business.  They collected on thousands and thousands of Nevada

12 homeowners.

13 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

14 MR. BOYLAN:  This is their business, tens of

15 millions of dollars churning annually.  It's not you doing

16 something for a family member.

17 THE COURT:  Okay.  So in all candor to you -- 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes.

19 THE COURT:  -- then your position is, is that you do

20 not accept Judge Williams's position on this?

21 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, we said it was wrong from the

22 beginning.  We've argued that in every court.  I think Judge

23 Scann expressly said she wasn't bound by it and she didn't

24 follow it.

25 THE COURT:  No, she's not.  You're not. 
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  And I -- 

2 THE COURT:  You're not.  You're not.

3 MR. BOYLAN:  -- can tell you -- 

4 THE COURT:  It's not binding.  But -- 

5 MR. BOYLAN:  In -- 

6 THE COURT:  -- when we try to keep some kind of

7 consistency amongst the Court, that's why we use those.  We

8 look at them.  And -- 

9 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, I understand.  But if you --

10 we've dissected that in our papers.

11 THE COURT:  Okay.

12 MR. BOYLAN:  And it's wrong on its face.  I mean,

13 for example, NRS 80 -- 

14 THE COURT:  Okay.

15 MR. BOYLAN:  -- it relies upon NRS 80.015.  It

16 didn't even look at subsection (4)(b) which says you can't

17 even use that statute in this case, and you can't use it as a

18 defense to a deceptive trade practice.  It's right in the

19 statute. 

20 All we have to do in this case is read the statutes. 

21 Why that's not in the Judge Williams Order, I can't explain

22 it.  I know he didn't sign it.  It was signed -- 

23 THE COURT:  Yeah.  But I don't know.  I believe I

24 read English, and I read these, and it's not as clear as you

25 seem to make it.  That's what I'm having trouble with. 
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1 Because it's not as clear -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

3 THE COURT:  -- and I would agree that 649 is

4 extremely broad, and you're reading it that way.  And your

5 broad reading of it is that you're encompassing, even a

6 trustee.  

7 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, trustees can do a lot of

8 different things.  And we have two positions in this case, so

9 let me answer your original question a moment ago.

10 We said from the beginning, it's our position,

11 consistent with the decisions of about 45 appellate judges, 45

12 appellate judges under a less broad statute, the FDCPA -- 

13 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

14 MR. BOYLAN:  -- there's about 45 appellate judges in

15 the United States, and there's a whole host of other state

16 judge which we've cited that have said that, yes, if you're

17 processing a foreclosure for a bank, if you're acting on

18 behalf of a bank to process a foreclosure, that is a form of

19 collection that requires a license, even if all you're doing

20 is the Notice of Default and the Notice of Sale and conducting

21 the sale.  If that's all you do, it is collection.  That is

22 our first position in this case.

23 Our second position, which is the one that Judge

24 Scann seemed more amenable to, and I think the Court is

25 suggesting that as well.  The second position is, consistent
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1 with -- there's -- there's only two judges, appellate judges

2 that have gone this way, in a split decision that may be soon

3 subject to en banc review.

4 There's only two judges in the country that said,

5 no, that's not always.  But if you do anything else, if you do

6 anything else then, yes, you can be a debt collector.

7 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

8 MR. BOYLAN:  So even the Ho (phonetic) decision

9 doesn't disagree with our second position.  

10 Now, what have we alleged and now proven?  Proven. 

11 It's -- we've got the evidence already.

12 THE COURT:  What?

13 MR. BOYLAN:  Is there a lot more?  Yes, and we want

14 to get it all.  We have proven that they had entire

15 departments calling homeowners regarding the debt.  They had

16 entire departments collecting money on the defaulted debt in

17 order to reinstate or pay off the loan. 

18 They had entire departments doing other collection

19 methodologies alternative to foreclosure such as taking a Deed

20 in Lieu without a foreclosure proceedings.  That's in -- 

21 THE COURT:  Is it -- would not all of what you've

22 just explained though, something that a trustee, a holder in

23 this -- under these circumstances could do under this Deed --

24 or these Deeds of Trust?

25 MR. BOYLAN:  No, absolutely not.  Absolutely not.  A
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1 Deed of Trust can't authorize you to violate Nevada law.

2 THE COURT:  Where are they violating Nevada law

3 there?  That's what I need to know.  That's what I'm saying.

4 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, 649 says they have to have a

5 license to -- 

6 THE COURT:  Okay.  That -- 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  -- collect money.

8 THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.  I understand your

9 argument.  I understand your argument there.  But if I don't

10 accept that, then at least for purposes of this there's no

11 violation.

12 MR. BOYLAN:  Right.

13 THE COURT:  But if I accept that there would be -- 

14 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

15 THE COURT:  But -- so stay away from that for a

16 minute, okay?

17 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, but they're collecting money,

18 right, millions -- 

19 THE COURT:  No.  Okay. 

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- of dollars. 

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  But that's what I -- 

22 MR. BOYLAN:  So why are we -- 

23 THE COURT:  -- what I -- 

24 MR. BOYLAN:  So under your view of it, why -- why is

25 there any question about the validity of this claim?  They're
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1 admitting that they're collecting millions of dollars from

2 Nevada.

3 THE COURT:  Okay.  Okay.

4 MR. BOYLAN:  So what -- so does that -- does the

5 Court believe that's protected under 107?

6 THE COURT:  Well, what you're saying then, then the

7 banking practices that we've had since, I guess, the inception

8 of these statutes when -- in lieu of -- in the operation of

9 the use of a Deed of Trust, would be anytime the bank, acting

10 as a trustee, would be in violation of Nevada law if they're

11 from someplace other than the State of Nevada.

12 MR. BOYLAN:  No.  No.  Read the statute.  The banks

13 are exempted. 

14 THE COURT:  Okay.

15 MR. BOYLAN:  It's only if you're a collection

16 agency, meaning, you're doing this -- 

17 THE COURT:  Or -- 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  -- as a business for other -- 

19 THE COURT:  -- a trustee.

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- people.

21 THE COURT:  If you're a trustee.

22 MR. BOYLAN:  If you were -- 

23 THE COURT:  Okay?

24 MR. BOYLAN:  -- a trustee and you have entire

25 departments collecting money, you have to get your license
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1 from the FID, come under the supervision of the FID.  You have

2 to be tested, you have to collect -- you have to have a

3 collection agency manager who's passed the test administered

4 by the FID.  You have to have -- all of your individual

5 offices have to be registered with the FID.  You have to post

6 a bond, because these people are collecting money and putting

7 it into accounts.

8 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

9 MR. BOYLAN:  They can steal that money.  You have to

10 post a bond so that the consumers and the clients are

11 protected.  If you're collecting millions of dollars, if

12 you're a foreign entity coming into this state collecting

13 millions of dollars, you have to come under the jurisdiction

14 of the FID.

15 And anybody in the world that can send you a

16 thousand Deeds of Trust a day and it does not authorize you to

17 collect money in this State without coming under the

18 jurisdiction of -- and supervision of the FID.

19 Now, I'll be -- 

20 THE COURT:  Okay.  How would it apply -- 

21 MR. BOYLAN:  -- candid with the Court -- 

22 THE COURT:  How would it apply, since you -- since

23 you're saying, read the statute -- 

24 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes.

25 THE COURT:  -- read the statute; under 649.022(a),
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1 when they talk about individuals regularly employed on a

2 regular wage of salary in the capacity of credit men.  When

3 we're talking about a Deed of Trust, you know, and they're

4 taking -- they're taking -- they're becoming trustees under

5 that, and if they're the ones that actually were granting

6 that.

7 Or another similar capacity upon a staff of

8 employees, like you're saying, or any person not engaged in

9 the business of a collection.  You keep saying they're a

10 collection agency.  And that's where -- 

11 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, did you look at the contracts? 

12 We submitted examples of the contracts.

13 THE COURT:  Okay.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  They make contracts with these banks to

15 collect money.

16 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

17 MR. BOYLAN:  It's all spelled out.  We've gone

18 through the contracts.

19 THE COURT:  Okay.

20 MR. BOYLAN:  This is not a situation where J.C.

21 Penney, for example, for its credit card, J.C. Penney has a

22 staff of its own employees that are its credit men and they

23 work on trying to collect J.C. Penney debts on J.C. Penney

24 credit cards.

25 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  That's what you just referred to -- 

2 THE COURT:  I got you.

3 MR. BOYLAN:  -- in (a).  That's not what we're

4 talking about.  We're talking about separate businesses, in

5 this case, foreign entities -- 

6 THE COURT:  But I use -- what I keep going back to,

7 you know that the credit agency or the lending institution

8 does not have to hold the Deed of Trust, does not have to be

9 the trustee.  You know that.  And so -- 

10 MR. BOYLAN:  Nor do they have to have the trustee

11 collect the money.  The trustee doesn't have to collect -- 

12 THE COURT:  But -- 

13 MR. BOYLAN:  -- money.

14 THE COURT:  But I'm -- 

15 MR. BOYLAN:  Why do they build that into their

16 business model?

17 THE COURT:  But -- 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  Where in 107 -- just show me where in

19 107 it says that the trustee is required or even permitted to

20 collect money.  Just -- I can't find it.

21 THE COURT:  But doesn't the trustee have the right

22 to act on the contractual agreement that they had -- 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  To conduct the sale.

24 THE COURT:  -- and part of that would be to enforce

25 the sale, enforce them to pay, otherwise take it to sale? 
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1 Would there -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  They can -- 

3 THE COURT:  -- not be?

4 MR. BOYLAN:  They can conduct a sale.

5 THE COURT:  Isn't one of the avenues of conducting a

6 sale the first thing that you do, contact the individuals and

7 say, hey, we're going to take this to sale unless you pay off

8 what is owed.  And your argument being, that's a collection. 

9 And so I'm -- what I'm saying is, is that not part or the

10 prerogative of the trustee?

11 MR. BOYLAN:  According to -- 

12 THE COURT:  Is it not though?

13 MR. BOYLAN:  It's not if you're asking for payment

14 and you're actually collecting the money as an agent.  Let me

15 give an example in Ho.  You seem to be -- you know, there's 45

16 judges going one way, there's two judges going the other way,

17 and you seem to -- 

18 THE COURT:  What 45 judges?  

19 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

20 THE COURT:  Forty-five judges in this jurisdiction?

21 MR. BOYLAN:  No, in the -- in the country.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.

23 MR. BOYLAN:  We cited all the cases.  Have you read

24 Blazer (phonetic), have you read Reese (phonetic), have you

25 read Wilson (phonetic)?  They really explain it better than I
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1 can, Your Honor.  They really -- 

2 THE COURT:  Yeah.  But -- 

3 MR. BOYLAN:  -- explain it much better than I do. 

4 And they answer all your questions, frankly, much better than

5 I do.  These are not new questions, they're debated in all

6 these appellate opinions.

7 But let me -- let me suggest this.  We gave you a

8 mountain of paper.  I don't think it's possible, frankly,

9 particularly given the timing, for you to read all those

10 cases.  I think you should -- if you're thinking this way, I

11 would ask -- 

12 THE COURT:  Well, what I'm at -- where I'm at,

13 because I believe my -- I think -- I'm pretty sure I'm on

14 board with what Judge Scann was, is that -- is that it appears

15 that what you're doing in your discovery is beyond what Judge

16 Scann was saying initially.  

17 Her position was, hey, find stuff that you can

18 outside of 107.  I believe that's what's happened.  If you can

19 find something that shows that they were committing fraud

20 other than -- I mean, in some way, I think you're narrowing it

21 and you're stuck in this world that, no, we disagree with

22 Judge Kephart, we disagree with the way that -- and we know

23 that they're violating this even though they're a trustee.

24 I think what Judge Scann was saying is look beyond

25 that.  If you can find something beyond that, and she gave you
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1 that room to do it, then -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, unfortunately, we in practice

3 from our perspective we haven't gotten that room.  We've had

4 to file 16 Motions to Compel because they won't give us the

5 information that allows us to do that.

6 THE COURT:  I know, well -- 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  Sixteen Motions to Compel in a year. 

8 So, we haven't gotten any room.  They won't give us the -- for

9 example, collecting money.

10 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

11 MR. BOYLAN:  I think -- I'm not sure if you believe

12 that collecting money, you need to have a license.  And -- 

13 THE COURT:  Okay.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  But we've asked, for example -- 

15 THE COURT:  Well, I -- 

16 MR. BOYLAN:  -- and we've been told we can't have

17 that information.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  

19 MR. BOYLAN:   We can't -- we can't find out exactly

20 how much they collected from Nevadans.  So -- 

21 THE COURT:  Okay.

22 MR. BOYLAN:  -- I don't think we've been given that

23 room at all.  I -- I just -- now, but here's -- here's my -- 

24 THE COURT:  I know.  But that's the -- if you're

25 framing in that regards, I can understand their objection to
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1 that, is if you're saying, collecting money, then you bring it

2 right back into like a collection agency.

3 I think the question would -- I'm not going to get

4 into that.  I mean, that -- because that's the fight here, is

5 that -- 

6 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

7 THE COURT:  -- they're of the opinion -- and when I

8 say "they" I mean the defense -- they're of the opinion that,

9 hey, we're not a collection agency, we're acting as a trustee. 

10 We're protected, so to speak, under 107 if we act within the

11 guidelines of the Deeds of Trust.  

12 And so I would expect that your request would be,

13 okay, we need a copy of the Deed of Trust, and then you

14 purview those to see what was going on, and then you have to

15 ask questions of what was collected beyond what was allowed

16 here.

17 And the reason I say that is because there was some

18 question that Judge Scann had with regards to any fees that

19 are associated with the collection other than just what was

20 owed on the -- on the -- 

21 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, yeah, but that -- 

22 THE COURT:  -- deeds.

23 MR. BOYLAN:  -- I don't think that answers anything. 

24 Yes, their fees, their fees are added -- 

25 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  -- to the obligation.  And they put

2 that in a chart.  We've submitted some of those documents and

3 plenty of testimony.  Their fees are added to it.  But

4 according to the Court's view, of course, they're the trustee. 

5 They're -- the Deed of Trust says that their fees are going to

6 be added to it.  So, I'm not sure of the distinction there.

7 THE COURT:  Okay.

8 MR. BOYLAN:  I think, candidly, Your Honor, I am not

9 going to convince you today.  It's just not going to happen.

10 THE COURT:  I know.

11 MR. BOYLAN:  The only way you're going to get

12 convinced is to -- 

13 THE COURT:  Well, no, no, I -- 

14 MR. BOYLAN:  -- is to read all those cases.  

15 THE COURT:  Okay.

16 MR. BOYLAN:  And I would -- and here's my

17 suggestion; there's -- there's 20 hours of reading there and

18 that's a huge burden.  And if you read those cases -- 

19 THE COURT:  That's fine.  We've been -- 

20 MR. BOYLAN:  If -- if you read those cases, and your

21 views are unchanged -- 

22 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  -- then it sounds to me like you want

24 to follow -- 

25 THE COURT:  Well, I -- 
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  -- you want to follow -- 

2 THE COURT:  Well -- 

3 MR. BOYLAN:  -- Judge Williams.

4 THE COURT:  I'll tell you what I'll do.

5 MR. BOYLAN:  And we're on our way to the Supreme

6 Court.  And I respect that.

7 THE COURT:  Okay.

8 MR. BOYLAN:  We can disagree and still -- 

9 THE COURT:  Can -- 

10 MR. BOYLAN:  -- be friends.

11 THE COURT:  Oh -- 

12 MR. BOYLAN:  But I'm not -- I don't want to spend

13 another three years -- 

14 THE COURT:  I know.

15 MR. BOYLAN:  -- and then you're going to grant

16 summary judgment because -- 

17 THE COURT:  No, I -- I know.

18 MR. BOYLAN:  -- you thought Williams's order -- 

19 THE COURT:  That's what I'm trying to right now --

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- was right in the first place.

21 THE COURT:  Let's get through this then now, okay? 

22 That's why I'm trying to narrow this down myself to see what

23 has been the problem here.

24 So let me ask you this though; I'm going to ask you

25 to do this to assist me.  Narrow it down as to what you
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1 believe are the most compelling case.  I know usually you do

2 that.  Please don't -- I'm not trying to -- I mean, come on, I

3 read these things.  I get 50 cases, you know, the string cite,

4 the whole bit.

5 But narrow it down to ones you think are the most

6 compelling and I'm going to allow you to give me as part of an

7 argument on that with respect to the way you interpret the

8 case as it applies to Nevada statute 107, even 649.  All

9 right?

10 I know that you've done that somewhat, but it seems

11 in some of your arguments they're just conclusionary

12 (phonetic) statements.  I want to know specifically how you

13 believe the strongest cases that you have, specifically apply,

14 or have -- lend credence to an interpretation that you're

15 presenting as to our interpretation of 107, and 649.

16 Is that -- 

17 MR. BOYLAN:  Makes sense.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.

19 MR. BOYLAN:  I'll be happy to do it.

20 THE COURT:  Okay.

21 MR. BOYLAN:  Understanding that the Nevada statute

22 is different and more broad.

23 THE COURT:  I know, that's -- you're -- 

24 MR. BOYLAN:  But it's more broad than the -- 

25 THE COURT:  -- don't -- if you want to make my point
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1 right now, that's what you're doing.  But I'm saying, please

2 do that and explain it to me, because -- because, quite

3 frankly, I agree that you've probably done a lot more research

4 on this, getting prepared for this case, and I appreciate

5 that, than I have.

6 And I'm candidly saying that, because I've been

7 reading through this trying to get my hands around what has

8 happened.  Because when I first jumped on and started looking

9 at this, I was in that cloud about class.  And I was wondering

10 what was going on because it seemed to me that the class was

11 out in front of everything -- I mean, behind everything before

12 -- before we -- 

13 MR. BOYLAN:   Exactly.

14 THE COURT:  Okay.

15 MR. BOYLAN:  It's what we put in our papers that

16 this case has been upside down and backwards from the

17 beginning.

18 THE COURT:  And that's kind of how I feel.

19 MR. BOYLAN:  We should have focused on class

20 certification.

21 THE COURT:  And I want to get it -- and so I -- I

22 have to be -- I'm trying to be as candid as I can with you, is

23 that it's an area that, quite frankly, you're teaching me here

24 and I'm relying on you, both sides here.  But the side are so

25 opposite.  And so I'm, my God, am I not reading this right?
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1 So I went back, like you suggest, read the statute,

2 because I can always refer back and say, okay, this is how I'm

3 reading it.  And unfortunately, right now, the way I'm reading

4 it is not in favor -- 

5 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

6 THE COURT:  -- of your argument.

7 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, then, but if you are -- 

8 THE COURT:  And so -- 

9 MR. BOYLAN:  -- if after reading these cases and

10 going through this exercise, if your mindset is -- 

11 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

12 MR. BOYLAN:  -- that Judge Williams is right and

13 that under 107, if you have a Deed of Trust -- and I don't

14 want to exaggerate too much -- but if you have a Deed of Trust

15 you can essentially do anything.  If it's that -- 

16 THE COURT:  Well, it's not that because -- 

17 MR. BOYLAN:  But what can do -- 

18 THE COURT:  -- you -- 

19 MR. BOYLAN:  -- what can they not do -- 

20 THE COURT:  Well, you're limited -- 

21 MR. BOYLAN:  -- that would make them -- 

22 THE COURT:  -- you're limited by the -- 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  What can they -- 

24 THE COURT:  -- contractual obligations in the Deed

25 itself.
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  What can they not do without having to

2 get a collection agency license from the FID.  If they had --

3 what can they not do?  I respectfully -- 

4 THE COURT:  Well, I don't think that -- 

5 MR. BOYLAN:  -- it seems that the Court -- 

6 THE COURT:  -- they can -- I don't think that   

7 they -- 

8 MR. BOYLAN:  -- believes they can do anything.

9 THE COURT:  -- can foreclosure on the person's

10 vehicle.  I don't think that they could take the person's

11 house -- I mean, take the person's clothing.  I don't think

12 that they can arrest the individuals.  I mean, you're asking

13 me just to give you a idea of what they can't do.  

14 But when it comes to the house itself they can say,

15 hey, you know, you owe me $100,000 on this.  How are you going

16 to pay it?  Are you going to pay it?  If you're not going to

17 pay it I'm going to come get it.

18 MR. BOYLAN:  All right.  What about -- 

19 THE COURT:  You know?

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- so, okay, I -- if that's the Court's

21 view then we're -- 

22 THE COURT:  I'm not -- I'm just -- 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  -- well but doorknocker. 

24 THE COURT:  Okay.

25 MR. BOYLAN:  Can they go knock on the door and say,
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1 hey, money, money.  Knock on the door and say, money.  Can

2 they do that without a collection agency license?

3 THE COURT:  If -- 

4 MR. BOYLAN:  I think the answer is obviously no. 

5 Can they call the person -- 

6 THE COURT:  Well, that's the position -- 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  -- four or five times? 

8 THE COURT:  -- you're taking.  And I'm here -- I'm

9 here, I'm the trustee in this, on behalf of the trustee I'm

10 here.  You owe $100,000.  Are you going to be able to pay

11 this, you know?  And so I -- 

12 MR. BOYLAN:   All right.  Again, if the Court -- if

13 that's the Court's conclusion -- 

14 THE COURT:  Um-hum.  Well, I don't know yet.

15 MR. BOYLAN:  -- then -- then we lose.

16 THE COURT:  That's where I'm at.

17 MR. BOYLAN:  Then we -- if -- we lose.  And we have

18 to go to the -- 

19 THE COURT:  Right.

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- Supreme Court.  It's just -- 

21 THE COURT:  Right.

22 MR. BOYLAN:  -- no choice.

23 THE COURT:  Well, but I'm willing to -- I'm giving

24 you -- if you want to -- 

25 MR. BOYLAN:  No, I don't want to.  I -- 
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1 THE COURT:  -- I'm trying -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  -- we've got six years into this.

3 THE COURT:  -- to get you -- I'm trying to get you  

4 -- I'm giving you the opportunity to convince me -- 

5 MR. BOYLAN:  I'm going to do it.

6 THE COURT:  -- and that's what we're here for.

7 MR. BOYLAN:  I'm going to do exactly what you say. 

8 But -- 

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. BOYLAN:  -- I can't do it if you don't read the

11 cases.  And I'm not criticizing you.

12 THE COURT:  No, I will.

13 MR. BOYLAN:  I'm not criticizing you.  The stack of

14 paper is four feet tall.

15 THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, that's what I'm saying,

16 break it down.  Give me your most important cases that you

17 believe are most essential, that they're on par with your

18 argument.

19 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes, sir.

20 THE COURT:  And say, here, Judge, this is why you're

21 wrong.  I'm not beyond that.  I'm not so proud that I can't be

22 persuaded.  I'm just saying I'm not persuaded completely by

23 either side.  That's why I was going to say, if you want to do

24 further discovery on this, looking for things outside of that,

25 let's do that.  But I'm -- right now you've got my attention. 

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

AA004039



31

1 They don't like it, because I'm going to give you some more

2 time to convince me and tell me, Judge, this is where you're

3 wrong.

4 MR. BOYLAN:  Sure.  I appreciate it very much.  And

5 I respect your approach.

6 THE COURT:  Okay.  I mean, I will tell you -- well,

7 I can't -- I'm leaning that way because of the way I'm reading

8 this.  But you know, and don't get frustrated, because you've

9 put a ton of work in this and I come in -- and that's why I'm

10 taking this so serious, because I came in late, and I want to

11 make sure that I'm not missing something.

12 And, quite frankly, I'm pulling my hair out because

13 I'm thinking I'm missing something, you know?  And I can't get

14 into Judge Scann's head.  You know, bless her soul, that she

15 was dealing with this, and I feel so bad that she's gone, I

16 do.  It has nothing to do with your case.

17 But, you know, I had a lot of respect for her, and I

18 still do.  And so that's why I want to make sure before I kind

19 of trample on her decisions or something, I want to make sure

20 that I understand it completely.

21 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, I do think she was right and

22 Judge Williams was wrong.  So if you're going to choose, I

23 think you choose her.

24 THE COURT:  Yeah, but see the way I'm reviewing her

25 decision is I don't necessarily think that she was contrary to
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1 what Judge Williams had decided.  That's where -- not saying

2 maybe I -- that's -- maybe I'm missing this, is that that's

3 why I believe she limited what she was -- the position that

4 she took with her -- that wasn't ever drafted in an order.

5 But my reviewing of that was that it is right

6 exactly what I was saying is that find something outside of

7 that.  She doesn't use those words, 107 or 649, she's not

8 putting -- but she's saying that -- I actually believe she

9 also made kind of some dicta in her statement that she wasn't

10 really convinced that -- by your case.

11 So, and I don't know if that meant, as a class or

12 under the two fraud counts that she left.  See what I mean?  I

13 don't -- that's -- it was -- because she's not as clear as

14 maybe I'd like to it have been.

15 But so, with that being said, if I give you two

16 weeks do you think you can get that all together that you want

17 to give me the -- 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  Absolutely.

19 THE COURT:  -- the best?  And then I'll put it back

20 on a week after that.  I know you all have been here, and I'll

21 tell you, I don't really need to hear anything from the

22 defense unless you want to make a record or something.

23 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Oh, I do not, quote, "want to make

24 a record", close quote.  Your Honor is on to something very

25 important.  I'm just trying to figure out, because this feels
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1 like summary judgment sort of what you're asking for if Mr.

2 Boylan gets two weeks.  And I only want to do it in a way

3 that's going to assist the Court, believe me.

4 What would we then respond to it and come back and

5 argue -- 

6 THE COURT:  No, I -- 

7 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- because we could try to distill

8 it -- 

9 THE COURT:  Okay.  I got you.

10 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Yeah.

11 THE COURT:  Well, I think a lot of it's already been

12 done in the moving papers.  It's just -- and you've addressed

13 those.  And I'll go back through and look at your -- 

14 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Just -- can I say one comment?  So

15 from -- 

16 THE COURT:  Okay.

17 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- our perspective -- this is CRC.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.

19 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  And I know you've got an MTC

20 motion that's either on or not on, depending upon how Your

21 Honor views all this.  

22 But from the CRC perspective, we were doing exactly

23 what you just said, which is, Judge Scann clearly said she

24 didn't want this going up to the Supreme Court on a Motion to

25 Dismiss.  She wanted to give them the opportunity, I won't
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1 phrase it any differently than you phrased it.  I agree, those

2 weren't her words.  But you're exactly right, that's what

3 we've been doing.

4 So we were going to get to the end of that and we

5 were going to do some summary judgment.  We're holding our

6 summary judgment motion to get through the phase one of

7 discovery which -- 

8 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

9 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- the Discovery Commissioner now

10 says is going to be closing in June.  I'm not anxious to do

11 the additional discovery and spend all the money.  I'll be

12 happy to bring these legal issues forward.  But the one thing

13 that we are going to say in addition that is right to the

14 heart of what Your Honor said, is how do 107 and the Deceptive

15 Trade Practices Act and how -- 

16 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

17 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- do they relate?  And in 15

18 seconds or less, if you're a trustee to a three-party

19 contract, as we all know, very different from a debt collector

20 who's acting on behalf of the entity to whom or to which the

21 debt is owed, totally different relationships.

22 If you're aggrieved by something a non-judicial

23 foreclosure trustee does, you come here to one of these

24 courtrooms in this courthouse.  If you're aggrieved in a debt

25 collector capacity the first thing you do is go to the FID
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1 which has all the regulatory pieces that Mr. Boylan laid out

2 for you.  The legislature prescribed that.

3 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

4 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  And the courts don't have the

5 ability or shouldn't have the ability to decide anything other

6 than the fact that there is a line between the two, you're

7 exactly right.  And I would like to bring forward the law on

8 that argument that supports the notion that if one is within

9 the ambit of 107, this debt collector statute cannot, as a

10 matter of law, apply.

11 So if Mr. Boylan gets two weeks, I don't want to

12 flood the court with more paper, I know there's a lot of

13 paper.  I think even though we have more defendants than there

14 are plaintiff -- the plaintiffs, we -- most of the paper comes

15 from that side, but that's a different issue.

16 THE COURT:  Well -- 

17 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  I just want to do something which

18 makes sense for the Court.  But if we're going to argue this

19 in some way and end up with some ruling -- 

20 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

21 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- we would like a chance -- 

22 THE COURT:  Okay.

23 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- to respond and then all come

24 back here and argue.  And we want to do whatever the Court

25 would find of assistance to it.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

AA004044



36

1 THE COURT:  All right.  I think you've -- you

2 understand my area where I'm at.  What I want from the

3 plaintiff is -- I'll allow you in any regard that you would

4 like to brief that issue that was just addressed by opposing

5 counsel.  But the main thing is I want you to give me your

6 most controlling cases that you -- it may be all of them, I

7 don't know, but and a short brief of how those apply here.

8 And you heard opposing counsel's position as to if

9 you're in 107, if you're not, it's a debt collection.  If

10 you're collecting, there's a different agency -- a different

11 avenue that you need to pursue; address that.

12 Provide defense counsel a copy of what you're

13 submitting to me.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

15 THE COURT:  I'll allow you to address what they've

16 submitted to me, and address the further argument that you

17 just pointed out, because they're going to point that --

18 address that; okay?

19 So do you want more than two weeks?  Do you think

20 you need more than two weeks? 

21 MR. BOYLAN:  No, I don't think so, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.  Two weeks.  And then I'll give

23 you a week after that to respond. 

24 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  That's fine.

25 THE COURT:  And then a week after that we'll set it
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1 down for hearing here; okay?  Or do you want two, Dave?

2 (Court/Law Clerk confer)

3 THE COURT:  He's looking to see because we've got

4 some pretty big cases coming at us.

5 MR. BOYLAN:  And my understanding Your Honor -- 

6 THE COURT:  Hang on.

7 (Court/Law Clerk confer)

8 THE COURT:  Can you do it on the -- you can't?

9 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  The 27th, I cannot.  

10 THE COURT:  Okay.

11 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  I'm already -- I'm already booked.

12 THE COURT:  How about the following (inaudible)?

13 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Can we slide it to the next week? 

14 I understand the Court's -- 

15 THE COURT:  How about May 4th?  

16 MR. BOYLAN:  I can, Your Honor.

17 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  May 4th works.

18 THE COURT:  Everyone okay on that?  

19 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Just let me check, Your Honor.

20 (Defense counsel confer)

21 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  That's fine with us, Your Honor.

22 THE COURT:  May 4th.  Put it on for May 4th.

23 LAW CLERK:  At 9:00?

24 THE COURT:  9:00 o'clock, yeah.  

25 (Court/Law Clerk confer)
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1 THE COURT:  Since we're doing that, then I'd like

2 you to provide plaintiffs a copy of what you're submitting to

3 the Court -- 

4 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Sure.

5 THE COURT:  -- and so they can readdress if they

6 want some type of reply.  I know it's not -- it's not like

7 formal briefing here but I -- it's just something -- I'm

8 pretty confident I have a good understanding of the facts with

9 this.  I just -- I just want to make sure that I'm, as a

10 matter of law, I'm following it correctly.

11 MR. BOYLAN:  Understood.

12 THE COURT:  Okay?

13 MR. BOYLAN:  And we have submitted, again, the paper

14 volume is crazy, but we have submitted a lot of evidence to

15 show these things that we believe -- 

16 THE COURT:  Are outside of that?

17 MR. BOYLAN:  -- are outside.  They're -- we've got

18 tons of depo testimony -- 

19 THE COURT:  Okay.

20 MR. BOYLAN:  -- documents, you know, including their

21 admission that we are -- 

22 THE COURT:  Well, see that -- 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  -- a debt collector.

24 THE COURT:  That -- 

25 MR. BOYLAN:  You know, they say they're a debt
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1 collector.

2 THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, see that -- that's a

3 different -- that's -- in my opinion, if I'm reading 107 the

4 way that you don't want me to, then that's a different issue. 

5 If you find that that falls outside of that and it's

6 fraudulent, then that's your cause of action, you see what I

7 mean?

8 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, it's not fraudulent like common

9 law fraud.  

10 THE COURT:  Okay.

11 MR. BOYLAN:  It's just not.

12 THE COURT:  All right.

13 MR. BOYLAN:  And that -- that's a -- there's a big

14 difference here.

15 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

16 MR. BOYLAN:  This is a consumer protection statute. 

17 Historically -- 

18 THE COURT:  Yeah.

19 MR. BOYLAN:  -- collection agencies have been viewed

20 as unscrupulous and I'm not saying these defendants are.

21 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

22 MR. BOYLAN:  What I'm saying is every -- virtually

23 every state and the federal government regulates collection

24 agencies.

25 THE COURT:  Okay.
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  They do it for a reason, Judge.

2 THE COURT:  All right.

3 MR. BOYLAN:   And so -- 

4 THE COURT:  No, no, I agree.  I agree.  But you

5 know, now that -- just as a caveat, because of what's

6 happening in Nevada with all of this real estate issues,

7 that's -- you know, I want to kind of look at this a little

8 closer and -- 

9 MR. BOYLAN:  Understood.

10 THE COURT:  -- who knows, maybe I'm the milestone. 

11 Who knows, you know?  So let's see.

12 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Your Honor, for -- for just a

13 little clarity or -- so that would make Mr. Boylan's

14 submission due on March 28th, ours due on April 4th, and his

15 Reply that you just authorized, April 11th.  And then we all

16 look at those documents and come in and argue on May 4th?

17 THE COURT:  Yeah.  Okay?

18 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Terrific.

19 THE COURT:  Is that fair?

20 MR. BOYLAN:  Sounds very fair, Your Honor.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  I know he wants to -- 

22 MR. CERAN:  Just for clarification, Your Honor, I

23 represent Trustee Corp. -- 

24 THE COURT:  Uh-huh. 

25 MR. CERAN: -- and we have the counter motion to
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1 their summary -- partial summary judgment motion.  I just want

2 to inquire as to what the status in the Court's mind is now of

3 their motion and cross motion.  Should we just go with the

4 flow and see what happens with the briefing and then the Court

5 maybe would reset it?

6 THE COURT:  Well, I'm not going to tell you how to

7 defend your case -- 

8 MR. CERAN:  No.

9 THE COURT:  -- or act on your case but right now I

10 need to clarify that issue.

11 MR. CERAN:  Right.

12 THE COURT:  I would venture to say that if, in fact,

13 it is in the manner in which you wish it to be then you're

14 going to be covered and your counter motion, you know, is

15 probably going to be granted.  But I'm not saying that.

16 MR. CERAN:  Right.  I understand.

17 THE COURT:  Don't get -- I'm just saying that.  So I

18 think you've briefed it completely and -- 

19 MR. CERAN:  Yes.

20 THE COURT:  -- so now -- 

21 MR. CERAN:  I -- 

22 THE COURT:  -- it's just I want to make sure -- 

23 MR. CERAN:  I understand.

24 THE COURT:  I mean, and I welcome anything else that

25 you want to add.  And so -- 
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1 MR. CERAN:  I just really wanted to be able to know

2 what to tell my client about where we were so I didn't get it

3 wrong.  And that's fine, Your Honor.  We'll just step back and

4 when we all get together again later in May -- 

5 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

6 MR. CERAN:  -- the Court can perhaps clarify further

7 or what happens will be clarification.

8 THE COURT:  And you bring the donuts.  You bring --

9 no, I'm just -- I'm just trying to keep it -- I think you guys

10 are working real well together, so.

11 MR. BOYLAN:  Do you want us, Your Honor, to give you

12 courtesy copies of all the cases?

13 THE COURT:  Yes.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  Okay.  Thank you.  We'll do it.

15 THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.  

16 MR. BOYLAN:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

17 MR. CERAN:  Thank you, Your Honor.

18 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Thank you, Your Honor.

19 THE COURT:  Here's something else before you all

20 leave is that on here we have the Motion to Clarify and entry

21 of Order re 2016 Hearing on Defendants' Joint -- I'm

22 struggling with that because there was never an order signed. 

23 And so -- 

24 MR. BOYLAN:  Here's what I think, if I may.

25 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  No, no, that's just -- we moved on
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1 the heels of Judge Scann's -- I agree, there's not an order. 

2 We moved for this phasing.

3 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

4 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Judge Bulla granted that motion. 

5 That's why -- 

6 MR. BOYLAN:  Over our objection, yes.

7 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- that's why we have phasing,

8 over plaintiff's objection.

9 THE COURT:  Okay.

10 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  He's trying to undo that.  What I

11 heard Your Honor just say is we're going to do what we've just

12 all agreed over the next two months.

13 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

14 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  But from my perspective we're

15 happy to continue with phase one discovery or -- 

16 THE COURT:  Well -- 

17 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- not.  It's -- it's up -- or we

18 can just stop.

19 THE COURT:  Here's the problem with that is -- and

20 I'll tell you, I've been -- I've been in contact with

21 Commissioner Bulla because of what's happened and she's

22 needing some guidance, too, because it was unclear.

23 I think at this point in time, I'm going to stop it

24 until I -- we get a better clarification here.  Unless there's

25 -- is there something right now that -- 
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1 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Just stopping discovery?

2 THE COURT:  Yes.  Is there something right now --   

3 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Sounds good to us.

4 THE COURT:  -- like do you have depositions planned

5 and already that are in the works that are scheduled for?

6 MR. BOYLAN:  We do, Your Honor, but I'll tell you, I

7 think if there's a probability and it sounds at least like for

8 the moment there is a probability that you are going to

9 effectively grant their 12(b) motion which is -- because we've

10 asked you to consider that, you could disagree with Judge

11 Scann and just grant their 12(b) motion which sounds like is

12 what you're considering.

13 THE COURT:  Okay.

14 MR. BOYLAN:  If that's probable, then I don't think

15 it makes sense for us to spend all this time continuing

16 discovery -- 

17 THE COURT:  I agree.  Okay.  All right. 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  -- frankly.  I hate to say it, but

19 that's just the reality.

20 THE COURT:  Okay.  I appreciate that.  So at this

21 point in time, let's go ahead and suspend that discovery at

22 this point, okay?  But I'm still uncomfortable with the fact

23 that there's no actual order by Judge Scann.

24 MR. BOYLAN:  Well -- 

25 THE COURT:  I'm so uncomfortable with that.  That's
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1 a -- I don't know how you -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  We both submitted orders, which you

3 have.  Both sides submitted an order.

4 THE COURT:  No, I -- 

5 MR. BOYLAN:  You don't have them?

6 THE COURT:  No.

7 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Well, in fact, it -- 

8 MR. BOYLAN:   We submitted them as exhibits to our

9 motion.

10 LAW CLERK:  No, they need to submit them so you can

11 sign (inaudible).

12 THE COURT:  Yeah.

13 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  I wasn't at the last Status Check. 

14 I apologize.  I wasn't able to be here.  The transcript

15 reflects Your Honor asking for what we had submitted to Judge

16 Scann.  We brought it with us if that would be helpful to -- 

17 THE COURT:  Do you -- 

18 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- hand it up.  He's, of course,

19 Mr. Boylan, of course, has seen it.  This is what we

20 submitted.

21 THE COURT:  Is that a joint submission?

22 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  No, it's not.  We had had -- 

23 MR. BOYLAN:  We had competing order.

24 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  -- we had competing -- competing

25 orders.

Verbatim Digital Reporting, LLC � 303-798-0890

AA004054



46

1 THE COURT:  Okay.  Yeah.

2 MR. BOYLAN:  Well, I think -- 

3 MR. SCARBOROUGH:  Do you want -- do you want it or?

4 THE COURT:  Give me a copy of your order on your

5 paper that you provide me in two weeks.

6 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes.

7 THE COURT:  Give me a copy of that on the top.

8 MR. BOYLAN:  When we -- 

9 THE COURT:  Right.  That's how I want it, Dave. 

10 That way we can look at them.

11 THE CLERK:  (Inaudible)?

12 THE COURT:  Well, he's going to grab one right now

13 from you that -- okay.

14 MR. BECKOM:  Your Honor, just to be clear, so

15 discovery is stayed right now? 

16 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

17 MR. BECKOM:  And the only reason I'm asking is

18 because we actually had a deposition set this afternoon at

19 3:00 which we -- 

20

21 THE COURT:  No, I'm -- 

22 MR. BECKOM:  -- don't need to move forward on -- 

23 THE COURT:  No.

24 MR. BECKOM:  -- if everything's stayed?

25 THE COURT:  I don't think that's prudent until we
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1 know exactly -- it's -- 

2 MR. BOYLAN:  So, I think -- I know we're not there

3 yet.  But try to get some clarity for everybody and the Court. 

4 I think that as part of our motion for clarification and for

5 entry of a written order -- 

6 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  -- you are potentially simply going to

8 grant those 12(b) motions.  If I can't convince you, if these

9 cases don't convince you, then you're going to grant that

10 motion.  If so, then that's going to effectively end the case

11 all these -- 

12 THE COURT:  Well -- 

13 MR. BOYLAN:  -- all these other summary judgment

14 motions.

15 THE COURT:  -- are you submitting then that there's

16 nothing else -- I mean, there's nothing you believe that you

17 could find outside of 107 that would be -- 

18 MR. BOYLAN:  No.  I think we have already -- that's

19 why I'm happy -- 

20 THE COURT:  Okay.

21 MR. BOYLAN:  -- with the record frankly.

22 THE COURT:  Okay.

23 MR. BOYLAN:  I mean, candidly, if we go to the

24 Supreme Court we've got so much evidence of what they did -- 

25 THE COURT:  Yeah, beyond what you -- 
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1 MR. BOYLAN:  -- that it's stunning.

2 THE COURT:  -- believe would be a protection -- 

3 MR. BOYLAN:  It's frankly stunning.

4 THE COURT:  -- under 107, right?

5 MR. BOYLAN:  It's stunning what they -- 

6 THE COURT:  Well, that's what -- 

7 MR. BOYLAN:  And it's in our -- 

8 THE COURT:  That's where I'm at.

9 MR. BOYLAN:  -- separate statement.  Their own --

10 their own witnesses admit it.  We've got the documents where

11 they're asking for money.

12 THE COURT:  Okay.

13 MR. BOYLAN:  I mean, frankly, to me it's stunning. 

14 And but if the Court's view is that as long as they have a

15 Deed of Trust in their file they can do anything other than,

16 you know, pull the person out of the house physically assault

17 them, then we lose this case.

18 THE COURT:  Well, let me look at this first; okay? 

19 All right?

20 MR. BOYLAN:  Okay.

21 THE COURT:  Okay.  Anything else?  I'm going to

22 suspend the discovery at this point.

23 MR. WILDE:  Your Honor, Greg Wilde on behalf of

24 NDSC, and I apologize for arriving late.  But we had a small

25 matter on.  It was our Motion for Reconsideration.  We just
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1 didn't want to turn over our banking information in phase one

2 of discovery.

3 THE COURT:  Um-hum. 

4 MR. WILDE:  That's the only issue.  If the Court is

5 suspending discovery, you know, this is a matter that we could

6 address later depending on how the Court rules in May.

7 MR. BOYLAN:  We would agree to defer that, Your

8 Honor.  It's -- may not be needed to be reached.  Otherwise,

9 I'm happy to argue it if the Court would like to hear it now.

10 THE COURT:  Well, I don't think we need to.  I think

11 it's kind of putting the cart before the horse in some

12 regards.  And that's where I'm at in this whole case.  That's

13 what's got me -- and I don't mean to be coming back -- going

14 backwards on it, and I appreciate your terms of being flip

15 flopping.  I'm trying to get a better handle on that.  But -- 

16 MR. WILDE:  Your Honor, I don't mind -- 

17 THE COURT:  But I'll tell you this though -- 

18 MR. WILDE:  -- if it's without prejudice.  We can

19 raise it later if necessary.

20 THE COURT:  Well, my position was is that my

21 inclination was to deny it because I believe that the

22 information is relevant to some degree.  But I don't know if

23 it's necessary at this point in time because we're kind of

24 stalled.  And so -- but you'll -- do you kind of understand

25 what I'm saying?
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1 But I haven't even given you an opportunity to

2 argue.  But on the moving papers that would be the position

3 that I'd have.

4 MR. WILDE:  Okay.

5 THE COURT:  So at this point, though, I'm not going

6 to require that you reveal it because we're stalled.

7 MR. WILDE:  All right.

8 THE COURT:  If it -- for lack of legal terms, we're

9 stalled.  Okay?  Okay. 

10 MR. WILDE:  Thank you.

11 THE COURT:  All right?

12 MR. BOYLAN:  Thank you very much, Your Honor, for

13 your time on this.

14 THE COURT:  All right.  Does everyone have the

15 dates?

16 MR. BOYLAN:  Yes, Your Honor.

17  ALL ATTORNEYS:  Yes, Your Honor.

18 THE COURT:  Okay.  All right.

19 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you, Judge.

20 THE COURT:  All right.  Okay.

21 (Proceeding concluded at 9:58 a.m.)

22 *   *   *   *   * 

23

24

25
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